
 
 
 

 
Democratic Services Your ref:  
Riverside, Temple Street, Keynsham, Bristol BS31 1LA Our ref:  
Telephone: (01225) 477000 main switchboard Date: 12 January 2012 
Direct Lines - Tel: 01225 394358  Fax: 01225 394439 E-mail: Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk 
Web-site - http://www.bathnes.gov.uk   
 
 
To: All Members of the Re-Structuring Implementation Committee 

 
Councillor John Bull 
Councillor Paul Crossley 
Councillor Francine Haeberling 
 

 
Chief Executive and other appropriate officers  
Press and Public  

 
 
Dear Member 
 
Re-Structuring Implementation Committee: Thursday, 19th January, 2012  
 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the Re-Structuring Implementation Committee, to be 
held on Thursday, 19th January, 2012 at 2.00 pm in the Kaposvar Room - Guildhall, Bath.   
 
Please note that the room may change due to the Public Inquiry – check at Reception on 
arrival. 
 
The agenda is set out overleaf. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
Jo Morrison 
for Chief Executive 
 
 
 

If you need to access this agenda or any of the supporting reports in an alternative 
accessible format please contact Democratic Services or the relevant report author 
whose details are listed at the end of each report. 

 
This Agenda and all accompanying reports are printed on recycled paper 

 



NOTES: 
 

1. Inspection of Papers: Any person wishing to inspect minutes, reports, or a list of the 
background papers relating to any item on this Agenda should contact Jo Morrison who is 
available by telephoning Bath 01225 394358 or by calling at the Riverside Offices 
Keynsham (during normal office hours). 
 

2. Public Speaking at Meetings: The Council has a scheme to encourage the public to 
make their views known at meetings. They may make a statement relevant to what the 
meeting has power to do.  They may also present a petition or a deputation on behalf of a 
group.  Advance notice is required not less than two full working days before the meeting 
(this means that for meetings held on Wednesdays notice must be received in Democratic 
Services by 4.30pm the previous Friday)  
 
The public may also ask a question to which a written answer will be given. Questions 
must be submitted in writing to Democratic Services at least two full working days in 
advance of the meeting (this means that for meetings held on Wednesdays, notice must 
be received in Democratic Services by 4.30pm the previous Friday). If an answer cannot 
be prepared in time for the meeting it will be sent out within five days afterwards. Further 
details of the scheme can be obtained by contacting Jo Morrison as above. 
 

3. Details of Decisions taken at this meeting can be found in the minutes which will be 
published as soon as possible after the meeting, and also circulated with the agenda for 
the next meeting.  In the meantime details can be obtained by contacting Jo Morrison as 
above. 
 
Appendices to reports are available for inspection as follows:- 
 
Public Access points - Riverside - Keynsham, Guildhall - Bath, Hollies - Midsomer 
Norton, and Bath Central, Keynsham and Midsomer Norton public libraries.   
 
For Councillors and Officers papers may be inspected via Political Group Research 
Assistants and Group Rooms/Members' Rooms. 
 

4. Attendance Register: Members should sign the Register which will be circulated at the 
meeting. 
 

5. THE APPENDED SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS ARE IDENTIFIED BY AGENDA ITEM 
NUMBER. 
 

6. Emergency Evacuation Procedure 
 
When the continuous alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building by one of the 
designated exits and proceed to the named assembly point.  The designated exits are 
sign-posted. 
 
Arrangements are in place for the safe evacuation of disabled people. 
 

 



 

 

Re-Structuring Implementation Committee - Thursday, 19th January, 2012 
 

at 2.00 pm in the Kaposvar Room - Guildhall, Bath 
 

A G E N D A 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
2. EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE  
 The Chair will draw attention to the emergency evacuation procedure as set out under 

Note 6. 
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST UNDER THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972  
 To receive any declarations from Members/Officers of personal or prejudicial interests 

in respect of matters for consideration at this meeting.  Members who have an interest 
to declare are asked to: 
a)    State the Item Number in which they have the interest; 
b)    The nature of the interest; 
c)    Whether the interest is personal, or personal and prejudicial. 
Any Member who is unsure about the above should seek advice from the Monitoring 
Officer prior to the meeting in order to expedite matters at the meeting itself. 

4. TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR  
5. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING - 25TH JULY 2011 (Pages 5 - 8) 
 To be approved as a correct record - including the exempt minutes of the meeting.  

The exempt minutes will be circulated to Members under separate cover. 
6. QUESTIONS AND STATEMENTS  
7. FUTURE COUNCIL IMPLEMENTATION: CHIEF EXECUTIVE RENUMERATION 

(Pages 9 - 16) 
 Following an indication from the Chief Executive that he will retire in April 2012, steps 

have been taken to commence a recruitment process for his successor as Head of 
Paid Service/Chief Executive. Independent executive recruitment consultants, Harvey 
Nash Plc have been appointed to advise the Council in this process. 
 
This report seeks Members instructions on the pay and remuneration of this key 
appointment in the senior management structure. 

8. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 If the Committee wishes to move into exempt session for any part of the discussion, 

the following resolution needs to be passed; 
 
That, having been satisfied that the public interest would be better served by not 
disclosing relevant information, and in accordance with the provisions of Section 100 
(A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for 



the following item of business because of the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act as amended. 

 
The Committee Administrator for this meeting is Jo Morrison who can be contacted on  
01225 394358. 
 
 



 
1 

Re-Structuring Implementation Committee- Monday, 25th July, 2011 
 

BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET 
 
RE-STRUCTURING IMPLEMENTATION COMMITTEE 
 
Monday, 25th July, 2011 

 
Present:- Councillors John Bull, Paul Crossley and Francine Haeberling 
 
Also in attendance:  John Everitt, Vernon Hitchman, William Harding 
 
 

 
1 
  

ELECTION OF CHAIR  
 
Councillor Paul Crossley was elected as Chair of the Committee. 
 

2 
  

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 

3 
  

EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE  
 
The Chair drew attention to the emergency evacuation procedure as set out on the 
agenda. 
 

4 
  

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST UNDER THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972  
 
The Chief Executive declared a personal interest in item 9. 
 

5 
  

TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR  
 
There were no items of urgent business. 
 

6 
  

QUESTIONS AND STATEMENTS  
 
There were no questions or statements received from the public or Councillors.  
 
Comments were received from UNISON which were circulated at the meeting and 
have been placed on the Minute book. 
 

7 
  

FUTURE COUNCIL - IMPLEMENTATION PROPOSALS  
 
The Committee considered a report seeking authority to implement some aspects of 
the new senior management structure to support the transition to the new 
organisational model approved by Council in November 2010. 
 
The Monitoring Officer advised that there was no significant equalities impact arising 
from these proposals; a position which was accepted by the Committee. 
 
The Committee considered the submission from UNISON, broadly in support of 
retention of the present senior management structure which included a Head of Paid 
Service/Chief Executive. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 5



 

 
2 

Re-Structuring Implementation Committee- Monday, 25th July, 2011 
 

 
On a motion from Councillor Paul Crossley, seconded by Councillor Francine 
Haeberling, it was 
 
RESOLVED 
 

1. To approve the appointment of the current Strategic Director - Resources & 
Support Services to the new post of Strategic Director – Resources by 
transfer with effect from 1 August 2011; 

 
2. To approve the designation of the new post of Strategic Director – People and 

Communities with scope as set out in paragraphs 5.12 - 5.14 of the report; 
 

3. To approve the appointment of the current Strategic Director – Children’s 
Services to the new post of Strategic Director – People and Communities by 
transfer with effect from 1 August 2011; 

 

4. To recommend to Council that the holder of the post of Strategic Director – 
People and Communities be designated as the statutory Director of Children’s 
Services and Director of Adult Services; 

 
5. To note the organisational arrangements and interim senior management 

structure in the People and Communities Department (as outlined in 
paragraphs 5.19 and Appendix 4 of the report); 
 

6. To agree to the secondment of Community Health Commissioning staff to the 
Local Authority; 

 
7. To note and agree that suitable arrangements be put in place to integrate the 

work of Public Health Commissioning staff into the Local Authority pending 
legislative change in respect of the Public Health function which is anticipated 
later in 2011; 

 
8. To note the current position in respect of the ‘Place’ role as outlined in 

paragraph 5.17 of the report and that a report(s) on future organisational 
structure will be brought to this Committee in due course; 

 
9. To transfer Improvement & Performance Services within the organisational 

management structure to the Strategic Director – Resources portfolio with 
effect from 1 August 2011; 

 
10. To note that the current Chief Executive, in his role as Head of Paid Service, 

will continue to work directly with second tier officers in identified roles where 
it is appropriate to ensure the proper functioning of the Council; and 

 
11. To recommend to Council the retention of the present structure i.e. to retain 

the present post of Head of Paid Service/Chief Executive within the new 
senior management structure. 

 
 

8 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  

Page 6



 

 
3 

Re-Structuring Implementation Committee- Monday, 25th July, 2011 
 

   
Following consideration of the public interest test, and on a resolution from 
Councillor Francine Haeberling, seconded by Councillor John Bull, the Committee 
then 
 
RESOLVED that having been satisfied that the public interest would be better served 
by not disclosing relevant information, and in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from 
the meeting for the following item of business because of the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act 
as amended. 
 

9 
  

TRANSITIONAL STAFFING ISSUES  
 
The Committee discussed transitional arrangements in the event that the Chief 
Executive was likely to retire, and 
 
RESOLVED that officers be required to undertake further work to provide support for 
the transition. 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 5.50 pm  
 

Chair(person)  
 

Date Confirmed and Signed  
 

Prepared by Democratic Services 
 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Printed on recycled paper  
  

 
Bath & North East Somerset Council 

 
MEETING: Re-structuring Implementation Committee AGENDA 

ITEM 
NUMBER  DATE:                 19 January 2012 

TITLE: Future Council implementation:  Chief Executive remuneration 
WARD: ALL 

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM  
List of attachments to this report:  
Appendix 1: Chief Executive – Role Profile [draft] 
 

 
 

1. THE ISSUE 
 
1.1 On the recommendation of this committee, the Council, at its meeting on 15 

September 2011 approved a) that the post of Head of Paid Service/Chief 
Executive be retained within the new senior management structure and b) that all 
necessary steps be taken to appoint a successor when the Chief Executive 
exercised his option to retire.  

 
1.2 The Chief Executive has indicated that he will retire in April 2012 and steps have 

been taken to commence a recruitment process for his successor as Head of 
Paid Service/Chief Executive. Independent executive recruitment consultants, 
Harvey Nash Plc has been appointed to advise the council in this process. 

 
1.3 This report seeks Members instructions on the pay and remuneration of this key 

appointment in the senior management structure. 
 
 
2.  RECOMMENDATION 
 

The Committee is recommended to 
 

2.1 Endorse the role profile as set out in Appendix 1. 
 
2.2  Determine the pay policy for the Chief Executive/Head of Paid Service by 

reference to the information set out generally in paragraph 5 and factors 
specified in paragraph 5.6. 

 

2.3      Agree that all other conditions of employment should be in accordance with 
those determined for Chief Executive’s nationally by the Joint Negotiating 
Committee for Local Authorities’ Chief Executives as supplemented by locally  
agreed terms and conditions where agreed from time to time.

Agenda Item 7

Page 9



Printed on recycled paper  
  

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
3.1 An appointment within either the median or lower quartile as represented in the 

Hay data (paragraph 5.6) would present a saving over the current salary 
provision made for the Chief Executive’s appointment. As such, the salary costs 
can be met from the existing budget provision. Account of the committee’s 
decisions will need to be taken in setting budget cash limits for 2012-13 and 
future years.  

 
4.  CORPORATE PRIORITIES  
4.1  The Council’s corporate priorities are derived from the vision for the area 

contained in the Sustainable Community Strategy. In the light of the financial 
position in the country and policy initiatives of central government, aspects of the 
strategy and vision have become more important - in particular, the issues of 
growth, the recession and localism in the immediate to medium term. The 
Cabinet, with the support of the Strategic Directors’ Group, has reviewed the 
vision and priorities. 

 
4.2 The Council’s role will be changing and as a Strategic Commissioning 

organisation, the role will be to be very clear on the overall needs and 
opportunities in the area and on commissioning or enabling/encouraging the 
appropriate outcomes. There will be a need for the Council to continue to 
prioritise the vulnerable and ensure there is an emphasis on disadvantaged 
communities. 

 
4.3  The senior management structure agreed by Council is targeted to allow the 

Council the maximum opportunity to deliver on the vision in the new environment 
recognising that the financial challenge is great and there will be changes in 
terms of when and how priorities are delivered.  

 
5. THE REPORT 
Background 
 
5.1 The current senior management grading structure was agreed by the Council on 

the basis of advice and recommendation from the HAY Group. They also 
undertook independent assessment on the Council’s behalf to determine at what 
point in the structure individual posts should be placed. This methodology is 
consistent with the Council overall approach to pay and grading and the use of 
an objective job evaluation methodology gives protection in respect of potential 
Equal Value claims. 

 
5.2 To maintain the consistency across the whole pay structure and to provide 

impartial, independent advice. The Hay Group were commissioned to provide 
advice and guidance on the remuneration of the future Chief Executive in the 
context of the overall new management structure and the operating environment 
more generally. Hay are able to draw on a wide knowledge and data base of all 
employment sectors in the UK (and globally). It should also be noted that from 
March 2012, under provisions of the Localism Act 2011, Local Authorities are 
required to publish annually their Pay Policy in respect of senior staff and its 
relationship with lower earners). It is intended to present that Pay Policy 
statement for endorsement at the Council meeting in February 2012.

Page 10



Printed on recycled paper  
  

 
5.3 The job description/person specification for the post of Chief Executive/Head of 

Paid service has not been formally reviewed for a number of years and Hay’s first 
task therefore was to prepare, in consultation with senior Members, a new role 
profile for the appointment. This is set out in Appendix 1 and subject to 
endorsement by this committee will form the basis of the recruitment and 
selection of the new appointee and underpin the resulting contract of 
employment. The description together with contextual information relating to the 
Council’s positioning and operations informed the assessment made by Hay on 
the Council’s behalf. 

 
Summary of Hay’s findings & recommendations to the Council  
 
• Senior pay in the public sector is now more contentious than ever given the 

background of public sector cuts and a struggling economy. In the case of local 
authority chief executives, this has resulted in a downward trend in the level of 
advertised salaries. According to a recent national survey newly appointed chief 
executives are earning on average 14% less than their predecessors.  

 
 

• There is also some pressure for a greater link between pay and organisational 
performance, a point recently reinforced by the Hutton Review of Fair Pay. 
The review also cautioned against using the Prime Minister’s salary as a 
benchmark for senior pay in the public sector. 

 
5.6 Hay’s strong advice is that the evaluation of the Chief Executive’s role remains 

the same. This takes account of factors such as the role of the Council, operating 
structures, governance etc. The table below shows the Council’s current salary, 
the Hay evaluation level and pay benchmarking data. The pay data comes from a 
wide range of public and not for profit sector organisations and is national. The 
Council’s current policy is to set salaries around the market median. 

 
Role Current 

Salary 
Evaluation 

Level 
Public Sector Market Data 

Upper 
quartile 

Median Lower 
quartile 

Chief 
Executive  

£178,388  2028 £186,079 £165,445 £150,000 
 
5.7 In order to determine its senior pay arrangements the Council needs to decide:  

 
• the level at which it pays against the market  
• whether to use pay ranges or spot salaries  
• if pay ranges are used how are individuals placed and progressed within 

the range  
• whether to introduce an element of variable pay and if so the level 

Council  % 
Change  

Former CX salary  New CX salary  
Islington  -24% £210,000 £160,000 
Barking and 
Dagenham  

-23% £196,000 £150,000 
North Tyneside  -16% £190,000 £159,000 
Swansea  -10% £155,900 £140,000 

Page 11



Printed on recycled paper  
  

5.8 In considering each of the above points, Hay have suggested: 
 

• Although the Public Sector data shows a median of around  
£165,000, the median of newly established local authority chief executive 
salaries is likely to be below this as shown by the information in paragraph 
5.4. A salary in the order of between £140,000 and £150,000 is likely to 
place the Council well in the market place for this type of appointment at 
the current time. 

• It is suggested that a ‘spot’ might be chosen for the sake of simplicity and 
as there is only one incumbent there is less need for flexibility 

• Publicity has been given to the principle of ‘earn-back’ in the light of the 
Hutton Report referred to above, Members need to determine whether this 
(or other arrangements) linking organisational performance and the 
remuneration of individual post holders are appropriate to this (or indeed 
other senior appointments) at this time  

 
Other terms & conditions of employment 
 

5.9 The other main terms of employment for the Chief Executive’s employment have 
been determined by reference to a) the council’s general terms and conditions of 
employment (i.e. applicable to all staff) except where specific provisions (e.g. 
discipline, annual leave) are made by the Joint Negotiating Council (JNC) for 
Local Authorities Chief Executives. It is proposed that these arrangements 
should continue.  

 

6. RISK MANAGEMENT 
6.1 Risks associated with non-compliance with the statutory legal position have 

been set out fully in earlier reports to this committee and the Council in respect 
of the Future Council structure. Mitigation in respect of potential Equal Pay 
claims is set out in paragraph 5.1 

7. EQUALITIES  
7.1  The organisational model for the future council with an increasing emphasis on 

strategic leadership will enable the focus to be more on the needs of individuals 
and communities and enable the development of different ways to meet those 
needs more appropriately within the resources available.   

 
7.2 Impacts on the Council’s workforce composition will continue to be monitored. 
 
8. CONSULTATION  

a. The Council’s Statutory Officers (i.e. Finance & Monitoring), Director of 
Children’s Services and Director of Adult Services) have been consulted in 
the preparation of this report and their views have been incorporated in the 
text. 

b. This report has been provided to the relevant recognised Trades Unions for 
comment any comments received will be presented to the meeting.

Page 12



Printed on recycled paper  
  

 

Contact persons   
William Harding – 01225 477203  
Vernon Hitchman -01225 395171  
 

Background 
papers 

Council 15 September 2011: The Future Council – Statutory 
Responsibilities  

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an alternative 
format 
 

Page 13



APPENDIX 1 
 

Role profile 
 

Chief Executive 
 

 

Role purpose 
 
To provide strategic leadership to the organisation, ensuring that the policy objectives and priorities 
of the administration are operationalised by the Council.   
 
To ensure the efficient provision of high quality public services to people living in, visiting and 
working in Bath and North East Somerset.   
 
 
 

Accountabilities 
 

� Act as the principal policy advisor to Councillors and secure best professional advice on all 
relevant matters relating to the Council’s functions and services.  Support the Council’s 
democratic decision making process so that policies are agreed and implemented. 

� Lead the development of strategies to deliver the policies set by elected Councillors, ensuring all 
staff understand and act on the aims of the organisation, in order to meet the needs of the 
people of Bath and North East Somerset.   

� Take lead responsibility for the overall corporate and operational management of the Council, 
monitoring performance against plans to ensure effective and efficient delivery of services to the 
highest standards, including financial, performance, risk, people and change management. This 
includes performing the statutory role of Head of Paid Service. 

� Develop and review the organisation of resources, partnership arrangements and practices to 
ensure effective and efficient delivery of services. 

� Provide strong, visible leadership and direction through compelling communication of the vision 
and values of the organisation.  Enable the Council’s senior team to motivate and inspire their 
staff.  

� Create and manage effective partnerships with a broad range of stakeholders, building support 
among them in order to deliver better public services and improved results for local people. 

� Represent the organisation, its aims and achievements to stakeholders locally, regionally and 
nationally.   

� Forge a broad network of contacts across the public and private sector to maintain awareness of 
best practices and initiatives, adapting them for use within the Council to create demonstrable 
efficiencies and cost savings.   

 
 

Page 14



 

Skills, knowledge and experience 
 

� Substantial record of senior strategic leadership achievement and experience, consistently 
developing strategies and translating them into effective operational plans.  

� Extensive experience of working effectively and impartially with elected members and in 
supporting the democratic decision making process. 

� A broad knowledge of public sector service delivery, both directly and through commissioning. 
� A successful track record of forging and maintaining working partnerships with communities to 

ensure the development, design and delivery of services that reflects their needs. 
� Able to communicate a compelling vision to key stakeholders internally and externally to achieve 

operational outcomes.  
� Experience of successful management and implementation of complex policy issues, leading 

organisational and/or cultural change in order to achieve successful outcomes.  
� Business acumen from creating a commercial environment where the management of cost and 

customer satisfaction is paramount.  
 

 
 

Leadership behaviours 
 

� Champions the needs of the individuals and communities that Bath and North East Somerset 
serve, ensuring the Council places community needs at the heart of what they do and constantly 
challenging themselves and others to think from the customer perspective   

� Creates a shared and compelling vision for Bath and North East Somerset helping people 
internally and externally to understand and engage with the Council’s goals   

� Builds strong, strategic partnership relationships and bring partners together to create joined up 
solutions to complex issues for the people of Bath and North East Somerset 

� Takes a strategic approach to influencing, drawing on a range of approaches to effectively 
manage the politics and partnerships and position the Council for success internally and 
externally. 

� Understands the local and national, formal and informal political and socio-economic context 
and stay tapped into the needs and agendas of different stakeholders.  They use this 
understanding to pro-actively shape the context, identify opportunities or consider the best way 
to get things done. 

� Simplifies complexity creating clarity and direction in ambiguous, multifaceted situations for 
themselves and others. 

� Creates a culture of accountability, constructively and appropriately challenging peers, partners, 
members and more senior leaders to deliver agreed results and/or model the agreed values and 
behaviours.   

� Sets stretching goals that challenge the status quo and existing performance levels drawing on 
what the best organisations across sectors are doing. 
  Page 15



Printed on recycled paper  
  

 

 
Performance measures 
 

Customer service Relationships 
� Continuous improvement in levels of 

customer satisfaction and service quality 
� Feedback from Members and direct 

reports 
� Quality of life in Bath and North East 

Somerset 
 

� Reputation 
� Policy influence 
� Member feedback 
� Partner feedback 
 

Value for money Employees and culture 
� Continuous cost reduction 
� Service delivery and improvement 
� Achievement of KPIs 
 

� Employee engagement 
� Working climate 
� Behaviour 
 

Page 16


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of previous meeting - 25th July 2011
	7 Future Council implementation: Chief Executive renumeration

